
 

Page 1 of 66 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 14, 2019 

5:30 PM AT CEDAR FALLS CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes of July 24, 2019. 

Public Comments 

Old Business 

New Business 

2. 311 Main Street – Pump Haus Facade Review 

(WITHDRAWN – to be submitted at a later date to be determined) 

3. College Hill Neighborhood Site Plan Review – 1809 College Street 
 
Location: 1809 College Street 
Applicant: CV Commercial, LLC 
Previous discussion: None 
Recommendation: Recommend approval 
P&Z Action: Review and make recommendation to City Council 

4. Downtown Facade Review - Your CBD Store 
 
Location: 100 E 2nd Street, Suite 107 
Applicant: Your CBD Store Inc. 
Previous discussion: None 
Recommendation: Recommend approval 
P&Z Action: Review and make recommendation to City Council 

5. Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Plat 
 
Location: 16.65 acres west off of Hudson Road, north of Prairie Winds 1st Addition 
Applicant: Panther Farms LLC 
Previous discussion: None 
Recommendation: Recommend approval 
P&Z Action: Review and make recommendation to City Council 

6. Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition Preliminary Plat 
 
Location: 14 acres in the Pheasant Hollow Subdivision, westward extension of Apollo Street 
Applicant: White Coat Series II, LLC 
Previous discussion: None 
Recommendation: Review and continue discussion.  
P&Z Action: Provide direction and comments 

7. Land Use Map Amendment – West Fork Crossing 
 

1



 

Page 2 of 66 

Location: 119 acres between Union Road and Waterbury Drive  
Applicant: West Fork Crossing, ISG Engineering 
Previous discussion: None  
Recommendation: Review and continue discussion. 
P&Z Action: Provide direction and comments 

8. Rezoning from A-1 to R-1 – West Fork Crossing 
 
Location: 119 acres between Union Road and Waterbury Drive  
Applicant: West Fork Crossing, ISG Engineering 
Previous discussion: None  
Recommendation: Review and continue discussion. 
P&Z Action: Provide direction and comments 

Commission Updates 

Adjournment 

Reminders: 

* August 28th and September 11th Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
* August 19th and September 3rd City Council Meetings 

  

2



1 

 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting 

July 24, 2019 
City Hall Council Chambers 

220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

MINUTES 
 

The Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session on Wednesday, 
July 24, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 
Iowa. The following Commission members were present: Adkins, Holst, Prideaux, Saul and 
Wingert. Leeper joined the meeting via phone. Hartley and Larson were absent. Karen 
Howard, Community Services Manager, Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 
and David Sturch, Planner III, were also present. 
 
1.) Chair Holst noted the Minutes from the July 10, 2019 regular meeting are presented. 

Ms. Prideaux made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Ms. Saul seconded 
the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins, Holst, Leeper, 
Prideaux, Saul and Wingert), and 0 nays.  

 
2.) The first item of business was a PC-2 District site plan review for 918 Viking Road. 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided background information. He 
explained that the site plan is for a new commercial building at 918 Viking Road that 
will include five different buildings. In 2016 there was an overall site plan approved 
with a gymnasium and five outbuildings. The proposed building is the fourth of the five. 
Mr. Graham displayed the site plan, as well as the paving, explaining that the paving 
has been done in stages as the buildings are completed. He showed renderings of the 
building design and the landscape plan. Staff recommends approval of the 8,260 
square foot retail building with any comments or direction specified by the 
Commission.  

 
 Chair Holst stated that he feels that the site plan follows the previous iterations of the 

project.  
 
 Ms. Saul made a motion to approve site plan as presented. Ms. Prideaux seconded 

the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins, Holst, Leeper, 
Prideaux, Saul and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
3.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was a HWY-1 District site plan 

review amendment to a previously approved site plan at Lot 2 of the Gateway 
Business Park Subdivision. Chair Holst recused himself from the matter due to a 
conflict of interest and Ms. Saul acted as Chair for the item. Mr. Graham provided 
background information, explaining that the four acre site is at the northeast corner of 
West Ridgeway Avenue and Hudson Road was recently approved by City Council. 
After approval, the Dairy Queen corporate office asked the developer to make 
modifications to the site plan, adjusting the location of the building, changing the 
circulation of the drive-through and reconfiguring the parking areas, pedestrian access, 
and landscaping plan. Since this is a substantial change to the approved site plan, 

3

Item 1.



2 

 

Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council review is required. Mr. Graham 
displayed the original and revised plans to show the changes being proposed, which 
includes creation of a separation drive-thru lane, moving the trash enclosure, and 
changes to the number and location of parking stalls, traffic circulation pattern, and 
pedestrian access. They proposed to move the pedestrian connection from the site to 
the public trail from the west side of the property to the south side of the development 
along Viking Road. Mr. Graham also displayed the landscape plan and discussed the 
drop in the site points, but explained that the change will actually be an improvement 
due to the type of plantings proposed, which will better screen and buffer the parking 
and drive-through from view of the street and provide better placement of street trees 
along the Viking Road frontage.  The proposed changes will still meet the minimum 
code requirements for landscaping. Staff recommends approval subject to any 
comments or suggestions by the commission. 

 
 Ms. Prideaux feels that the new design enhances overall pedestrian and bike safety, 

as well as traffic flow. 
 
 Ms. Prideaux made a motion to approve the amended site plan as presented. Ms. 

Adkins seconded the motion. The motion was approved with 5 ayes (Adkins, Leeper, 
Prideaux, Saul and Wingert), 1 abstention (Holst) and 0 nays. 

 
4.) The Commission then considered the Park Ridge Estates Final Plat. Chair Holst 

introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. He explained 
that the plat is a 20 acre parcel at the north end of Lakeshore Drive. Last year the 
Commission and Council approved the rezoning and preliminary plat and the 
developer would like to create six new residential lots for single-family development. 
He presented the subdivision plat, the layout of the lots and outlots, and discussed the 
sensitive areas, which include floodplain, wetlands and steep slopes, which will be set 
aside in no-build outlots containing conservation easements, the restrictions of which 
will need to be spelled out in a easement agreement that will be recorded with the plat. 
He also displayed and discussed access easements and the proposed stormwater 
management plan for the subdivision. Staff finds that the proposed final plat is 
consistent with the preliminary plat and therefore recommends approval of the final 
plat with the following stipulations: 

 
1. Any comments or direction from the Commission 
2. Submission of a separate Conservation Easement document to be recorded 

with the plat 
3. All new homes will be constructed with a residential sprinkler system approved 

by the Building Division and the Fire Department. 
4. Identification of an access easement on the plat through Outlot H from Lot 1 to 

Outlot C 
5. Submission and approval of necessary construction documents, contracts, lien 

waivers, estimates and bonds for the public improvements 
6. Verification by the petitioner’s engineer that all access easements shown on the 

plat will be accessible and traversable for city vehicles 
7. Conformance to all city staff recommendations and technical comments 

 
Mr. Wingert stated that he will be abstaining from the item due to a conflict of interest.  

4

Item 1.



3 

 

 
Steve Troskey, CGA Engineers, stated that he is available to answer any questions. 
 
Tammy Stahl, 1009 Lakeshore Drive, stated she had concerns with how the drainage 
will be handled and with access to and the cleanup of the dam. She noted her 
appreciation for how easy it has been to work with the workers. 
 
Mr. Troskey explained that the excavation company is working on the infrastructure 
and the cleanup after the improvements. 
  
Mr. Holst and Mrs. Saul noted their appreciation in working with the neighbors to 
address the stormwater runoff, dam maintenance and the conservation of the sensitive 
areas surrounding the development.  

 
The discussion concluded and Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the final plat with 
the staff stipulations. Ms. Prideaux seconded the motion. The motion was approved 
with 5 ayes (Adkins, Holst, Leeper, Prideaux and Saul), 1 abstention (Wingert) and 0 
nays. 

 
5.) Ms. Howard asked the Commission to let staff know in advance if they know they will 

not be at future meetings to help ensure there is a quorum at each meeting. 
 
6.) As there were no further comments, Ms. Saul made a motion to adjourn. Ms. Prideaux 

seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins, 
Holst, Leeper, Prideaux, Saul and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:02 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Howard       Joanne Goodrich  
Community Services Manager    Administrative Clerk 
 

5

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Dennis Rutledge, Intern 

  Iris Lehmann, AICP, Planner II 

 DATE: August 8, 2019 

 SUBJECT: College Hill Neighborhood Site Plan Review – 1809 College Street 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve a College Hill Neighborhood District Site Plan Review for 
a new single-unit dwelling at 1809 College Street 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

CV Commercial, LLC 
 

LOCATION: 
 

1809 College Street  

 
 

PROPOSAL 
CV Commercial, LLC is proposing to construct a single-unit dwelling on the empty lot of 
1809 College Street. The proposal is for a one bedroom, one bathroom home with 700 
square feet of living space. See images below. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

View of the proposed home from all angles 6

Item 3.



BACKGROUND 
The lot at 1809 College Street is currently vacant. This property is part of the Auditor 
Rainbows Plat No 3 subdivision, is zoned R-2 Residence District, and falls within the 
College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District. The petitioner is proposing to build a 700 
square foot single-unit dwelling on this lot.  
 
All substantial improvements in the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District must be 
reviewed and approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission as well as City Council. 
Any new construction qualifies as a substantial improvement under Section 26-181 (3): 
“Substantial improvement means any new construction within the district or any 
renovation of an existing structure.” 
 
ANALYSIS 
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District has specific requirements for new 
construction within the district. In addition, general zoning requirements for new 
construction must also be followed. The attached submitted plans meet all of the 
minimum College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District and zoning requirements pertaining 
to new development. Details on each requirement are reviewed below. If this single unit 
is approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council, a land use and 
building permit will be required prior to construction.  
 

1) Proposed Use: 
The applicant is proposing to build a single-unit dwelling. CV Commercial LLC’s 
intent is to construct a new high quality affordable housing option in the core of 
Cedar Falls. The R-2, Residence District, permits low density residential 
development. A single unit home is a permitted use in the R-2 District. 
 
2) Lot size: 
The property is zoned R-2, residential district. In this 
district the required lot width for a single unit home is 
60 feet. The lot under consideration is 60 feet wide. 
The lot area required for a single unit home in the R-
2 district is 7,200 square feet. The proposed property 
is 8,100 square feet. The proposed lot area meets 
the R-2 District’s requirements.  

 
3) Building Setbacks: 
The required front yard setback in the R-2 district is 
25 feet. The proposed front yard setback on this 
home is 26 feet. The required side yard setback in 
this district is 10% of the lot width. Since the width of 
this lot is 60 feet, a 6-foot setback is required.  The 
side yard setbacks proposed are 6 feet 6 inches to 
the south and 25 feet 3 inches to the north; see 
image on the right. The rear yard setback 
requirement for the R-2 district is 30 feet. The 

North 

7

Item 3.



proposed single unit home has a rear yard setback of 73 feet. The proposed 
building meets all setback requirements. 
 
4) Building Floor Plans: 
The home will have one bedroom, one full bath, 
a full kitchen, and vaulted ceilings. The home is 
designed with an open living concept. The 
applicant is also proposing concrete patios on 
the front and the back of the house.  A full 
review of the building plans by the City’s 
Building Department will be required prior to 
construction.  

 

5) Parking: 
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District 
requires single-unit dwellings to have two hard 
surfaced parking stalls per dwelling.  The 
proposed concrete driveway is 12 feet wide and 
63 feet long. The driveway also includes a flare 
out next to the home, widening the driveway to 
22 feet and 3 inches. With this layout this 
property will have room for 3 parking spots; two in tandem in the driveway and one 
in the flare out. The proposed parking meets the requirements.  
 
6) Open Space: 
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District states that driveways measuring no 
more than 18 feet in width, sidewalks and pedestrian access ways measuring no 
more than six feet in width may be established across the required front and side 
yard areas.  The driveway will have a 12 foot width. Other than the front and rear 
patio areas, the remainder of the lot will remain as open green space. This meets 
all requirements.  
  
7) Building Design: 
The College Hill Neighborhood 
Overlay District states that materials 
and textures of all new buildings shall 
be compatible with those primary 
design elements on structures located 
on adjoining properties and also in 
consideration of said design elements 
commonly utilized on other nearby 
properties on the same block or within 
the immediate neighborhood. 
Comparable scale and character in 
relation to adjoining properties and other nearby properties in the immediate 
neighborhood shall be maintained by reviewing several design elements. These are 
noted below with a review on how each element is addressed. Photos of some of the 

Layout of Proposed Home 

8

Item 3.



surrounding homes are attached to this report. 
 
 Maintaining Similar Roof Pitch: 

The proposed home will have a shingled pitched roof as shown here. The 
surrounding homes have similar roofs in style and materials.  The roof of the 
proposed home is comparable to those that are around it. 
 
Maintaining Similar Building Height, Building Scale and Building Proportion: 
The maximum height in the R-2 district is 2 ½ stories or 35 feet, whichever is 
less. The proposed home is single story with a height of 16 feet from base to the 
roof peak. The surrounding properties on this block are a mixture of single story 
and two story homes. The proposed size of the home is smaller than most in this 
block but it won’t be the smallest home. 1816 College Street, a neighboring 
structure, has a livable space of 400 square feet as reported by the Assessor’s 
website. The proposed property will have 700 square feet of livable space. The 
height, scale and proportion of the proposed building are compatible with 
other dwellings in the area. 

 
Use of Materials Comparable and Similar to Other Buildings on Nearby 
Properties in the Immediate Neighborhood: 
Five of the seven homes in the immediate area have vinyl siding. The other two 
are brick homes. The proposed home will have white vinyl or cement board 
siding with a masonry base across the front of the home. The proposed 
materials are consistent with the surrounding homes.  

 
Architectural character: 
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District requires that the potential home 
has compatible architectural character to those in the immediate neighborhood.  
While the home has some features that give it a unique character, such as the 
vertical siding pattern and generous horizontal bank of windows along the front 
façade, it is designed as a traditional front-gabled home with a prominent stoop 
and canopy entrance, similar to other homes found in the neighborhood. The 
multiple gables provide character and visual interest and provide the basis for the 
vaulted ceiling on the interior of the home, which will make this small home feel 
more spacious. Many homes on this block have either a front porch or a stoop 
with a canopy that provides weather protection for the front entrance. The stoop 
and canopy entrance of the proposed home is consistent with other homes in the 
neighborhood. The front patio will be an uncovered, concrete pad. This is 
different from other homes in the immediate area. Many homes in the 
neighborhood have a front porch that elevates the usable outdoor space above 
the public sidewalk level to help distinguish the private outdoor space from the 
public space along the street. In this way, a porch provides more privacy for the 
residents of the home, as the first floor is elevated so that passersby cannot look 
directly into the interior of the home. Low planter boxes or other landscaping 
features could be used to provide additional privacy for the front patio.  However, 
with the fairly generous front setback staff finds that the patio as proposed is 

9

Item 3.



acceptable and will provide additional usable outdoor space for the residents.   
Overall, staff finds that the character of the proposed building meets the 
standards and the home will be an attractive addition to the neighborhood. 
 

8) Entrance:  
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District has requirements for the entrance of 
a home. Section 26-181, 6, a, states: “The primary front entrances of 
all residential buildings shall face toward the public street. Street frontage wall 
spaces shall provide visual relief to large blank wall areas with the use of windows 
or doorways and other architectural ornamentation.”  As shown in the photos 
above, the proposed entrance to the home faces the street and has traditional 
entranceway features that make it both functional and attractive. The front façade 
has generous window coverage to provide eyes on the street. The proposed 
home meets this requirement.  

 
9) Landscaping: 
The College Hill Neighborhood 
Overlay District Section 26-181, 5, d 
states: “All newly constructed single-
unit dwellings to provide on-site 
landscaping within the required yard 
areas or in other green space areas 
of the property at the rate of 0.04 
points per square foot of total lot 
area of the site under consideration 
for the proposed residential 

development or improvement”. With 
a total lot area of 8,100 square feet, 
the lot will need to provide 324 
points of landscaping. Points are 
calculated based on size and type of 
plants proposed or existing on site. 
The current site has 6 trees, two 
located in the public right of way, 
that are all 4-inch caliper or greater. 
Locations of the trees are shown in the images above. Each of these trees are worth 
100 landscaping points. The applicant is proposing to keep all the existing trees, 
providing 600 landscaping points. If any of the trees are damaged during 
construction they will be replaced. If either of the two trees in the right of way are 
being considered for removal, city staff will need to be consulted. If the proposed 
location of the home or driveway is determined to endanger any of the existing trees 
at any time, staff highly encourages the proposed home or driveway to be shifted 
accordingly. As long as the minimum setbacks are met, this type of change will be 
approved through a staff level review. In addition, the applicant will sod the affected 
area after construction. The landscaping requirements are met. 

  

10

Item 3.



 

10) Storm Water: 
The City Code states that there needs to be 25,000 square feet of impervious 
surface to trigger the need for on-site storm water management for a redevelopment 
site.  This home and its proposed driveway will be 825 square feet total.  This 
requirement does not apply. 

 
Technical Comments: 
City and Cedar Falls Utilities staff has reviewed the submitted site plan. All technical 
comments have been addressed.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the College Hill 
Neighborhood District Site Plan for a new single-unit dwelling at 1809 College Street 
with the following stipulations: 

1) Any additional comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission: 
8/14/19 Discussion and vote 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11

Item 3.



1803 College St. 

 
 
1804 College St. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12

Item 3.



1810 College St. 

 
 
1815 College St. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13

Item 3.



1816 College St. 

 
 

14

Item 3.



15

Item 3.



16

Item 3.



17

Item 3.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Dennis Rutledge, Intern / Iris Lehmann, AICP, Planner II 

 DATE: August 8, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Sign review of property in the Central Business District Overlay 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
New signage on storefront 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Heather Stumberg, Your CBD Store Inc.  Contractor: Signs & Design 

LOCATION: 
 

100 E 2nd Street, Suite 107 

 
PROPOSAL  
A new tenant, Your CBD Store Inc, and the property 
owner of 100 E 2nd Street are requesting a site plan 
review for a new wall sign and projecting sign at 100 E 
2nd Street, Suite 107 in the Central Business District 
Overlay Zoning District. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The petitioner proposes to install one new wall sign and 
one new projecting sign on the facade of 100 E 3rd 
Street for a new business, Your CBD Store, locating in 
Suite 107. The property is located directly east of the 
200 block of Main Street on the north side of E 2nd 
Street, see image to the right.  
 
This item requires review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council due to 
the fact that this property is located within the Central Business District (Section 26-189). The 
downtown district requires a building site plan review (i.e. design review) for any “substantial 
improvement” to an exterior façade, including new signs and awnings. A substantial 
improvement to properties in the Central Business District Overlay is defined in Section 26-189 
(f) and reads as follows: 
 

"Substantial improvement" includes any new building construction within the overlay 
district or any renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the 
exterior appearance of the structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or 

18

Item 4.



doors or altering the color or exterior materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, 
changes, alterations, modifications or replacement of existing facade materials will be 
considered a substantial improvement. Included in this definition are any new, modified or 
replacement awning structures or similar material extensions over the public sidewalk 
area. A substantial improvement also includes any increase or decrease in existing 
building height and/or alteration of the existing roof pitch or appearance.” 
  

Typically signage is not part of the review process unless the review is mandated by the 
Ordinance. In this case, when a new projecting sign is installed that overhangs the public right-
of-way the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council must review and approve the 
request. Not all signs are reviewed in this manner. If a sign or projecting sign is simply replaced, 
review of this level is not triggered and a permit can be issued with only staff level review. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The applicant is proposing to install a 52” x 96” flush mount wall 
sign and a 19” x 27” projecting blade sign to advertise the new 
tenant, Your CBD Store. Wall signs within the Central Business 
District cannot exceed ten percent of the total storefront area 
and all projecting signs shall not exceed 40 square feet per sign 
face (Section 26-189 (j)). The districts signage size 
requirements have been met. Both proposed signs will be 
placed on the south elevation facing E 2nd Street. Neither sign 
will be lighted. The wall sign will be located above the store’s 
entrance and the projecting sign will be placed next to the 
entrance 11 feet above the sidewalk and will project 1.5 feet into 
the right-of-way, see images to the right. All projecting signs 
within the Central Business District are required to be at least 
10 feet above the sidewalk and cannot project further than half 
the width of the sidewalk that the storefront is located on or five 
feet, whichever is less (Section 26-189 (j)(2)). The sidewalk at 
this location is approximately 10 feet wide. The proposed 
placement of the signs meet city code. If approved by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, this item will be placed on 
the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting. If the City 
Council approves this request, a sign permit will be issued for 
the new signs.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
No comments. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
8/14/2019 

 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the submitted facade plan 
for 100 E 2nd Street, Suite 107. 
 
Attachments:    

Letter of intent, Details of proposed signage 
19

Item 4.



 

 

 

20

Item 4.



 

21

Item 4.



 
 

 

22

Item 4.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, AICP, Planner II 

  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: August 8, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve the Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Subdivision Plat 

PETITIONER: 
 

Panther Farms LLC – owner; CGA Engineers – Civil Engineer 

LOCATION: 
 

16.65 acres west of Hudson Road north of Prairie Winds 1st Addition 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to final plat a portion of the Prairie Winds Subdivision in the R-1, 
Residence Zoning district, and create 43 standard residential lots.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The Prairie Winds Subdivision falls 
within an R-1, Residence Zoning 
district. In March 2013, the 
preliminary plat for the subdivision 
was approved by City Council. The 
preliminary plat encompasses 
71.10 acres and plans for the 
creation of 173 residential lots. 
Due to the size of the 
development, a developmental 
“phasing plan” was approved with 
the Preliminary Plat. Since then 
there have been a number of 
adjustments to that phasing plan. 
The most recent version was 
created in 2014, see attachments. The phasing plan addresses future traffic access 
issues related to this subdivision as well as with the adjacent northern subdivision, 
Prairie West. The two subdivisions (Winds and West) are coordinated to establish second 

23

Item 5.



routes of access. Final Plats for “Phase 1”, “Phase 2” and “Phase 3” of the larger Prairie Winds 
Preliminary Plat have been approved by City Council in 2013, 2014, and 2017, respectively. 
Panther Farms LLC is now looking to plat “Phase 4”, Prairie Winds 4th Addition. This final plat 
would allow for the development of the last remaining portion of the Prairie Winds preliminary 
plat east of Ironwood Drive. See image below showing the approved Final Plats of this 
subdivision and the area currently under consideration. Note that the lots being platted in the 
proposed Prairie Winds 4th Addition are slightly different than those shown on the phasing plan. 
This is due to sanitary sewer not being fully installed along Ashworth Drive at the time of the 
Prairie Winds 3rd Addition Final Plat approval.  
 

 
 
An updated timeline for development for this subdivision is as follows: 
 

Phase Timeline Number of Lots 

1 Final platted 2013 40 

2 Final platted 2014 4 

3 Final platted in 2017 13 

4 Now 43 

5 As market supports 73 

 
ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned R-1, Residential, which permits single-unit and two-unit residences. 
Minimum lot width is 75 feet for single-unit homes and 80 feet for two-unit homes. In the case of 
narrower dimensions at the front of the lot, the minimum width can be established at the 30-foot 
building setback line. Minimum lot area is 9,000 square feet for single-unit homes and 10,000 
square feet for two-unit homes. All proposed lots meet these requirements. It is anticipated the 

Prairie Winds 4th Addition 

Prairie Winds 1st Addition 

Prairie Winds 

3rd Addition 

Prairie Winds 

2nd Addition 

24

Item 5.



predominant development pattern will be detached single-unit homes.   
 
The Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Plat creates 43 buildable lots.  It includes a continuation of 
a 60-foot-wide right-of-way for Reese Road, Ashwood Drive, and Kara Drive, Tract “A”. The 
layout of the proposed final plat is consistent with the approved corresponding portion of the 
Preliminary Plat. Utilities are readily available to this site. The developer will coordinate with 
CFU for extending the utility services to the proposed development.    
 
Cluster mailboxes, according to USPS standards will be sized and placed in the ROW according 
to USPS standards. All cluster mailboxes will be located on lower volume streets and situated 
so as to prevent undue traffic congestion according to the direction from the City Engineer’s 
office. The submitted Deed of Dedication for this final plat is consistent with the previously 
approved Deeds of Dedications from the previous additions.  The Deed of Dedication also 
addresses the responsibility of the owners of lots 12 and 13 to maintain the right-of-way 
between their lots and Hudson Road. 
 
It should be noted that as the lots have been developed in this subdivision a number of issues 
occurred, which have resulted in unwanted drainage outside of designated drainage easement 
locations. To compensate for these events the applicant has worked with City engineering staff 
to adjust and add drainage easements on this plat. For this reason the easements of this final 
plat do not match what is shown on the preliminary plat, but will more accurately represent the 
actual intended stormwater drainage for the subdivision, so it is properly managed for the area. 
In addition to this change, Tract D, designated on the preliminary plat as a Stormwater 
Detention pond, has since been parceled off and sold to a neighboring property. The applicant 
has provided stormwater calculations showing that this area is not needed for stormwater 
management. This adjustment has been reviewed and deemed acceptable by the City’s 
engineering department.  These two adjustments are minor, so it was determined that a new 
preliminary plat was not necessary. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, has reviewed the proposed 
final plat. All of staff’s technical comments have been addressed.  
 
The property is located outside of the designated floodplain. A courtesy mailing was sent to 
neighboring property owners on Tuesday, August 6, 2019. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Plat is consistent with the City’s subdivision code 
and is consistent with its corresponding and approved Preliminary Plat.  City staff recommends 
approval. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
8/14/2019 

 
 
 

Attachments:  
   Proposed Final Plat  
  Proposed Deed of Dedication  
  Approved Preliminary Plat 
  Updated “phasing plan”   

25

Item 5.



26

Item 5.



27

Item 5.



28

Item 5.



1

DEED OF DEDICATION
OF

PRAIRIE WINDS 4TH ADDITION
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That Panther Farms LLC, an Iowa limited liability company, with its principal office in
Cedar Falls, Iowa; being desirous of setting out and platting into lots and streets the land
described in the attached Certificate of Survey by Travis R. Stewart, a Professional Engineer and
Licensed Land Surveyor, dated _____ day of ________________, 201__, do by these presents
designate and set apart the aforesaid premises as a subdivision of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
the same to be known as:

PRAIRIE WINDS 4TH ADDITION
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

all of which is with the free consent and the desire of the undersigned and the undersigned do
hereby designate and set apart for public use the street(s) as shown upon the attached plat.

EASEMENTS

The undersigned do hereby grant and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its
successors and assigns, and to any private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the
transmission and/or distribution of water, sanitary sewer, gas, electricity, communication service
or cable television, perpetual easements for the erection, laying building and maintenance of said
services over, across, on and/or under the property as shown on the attached plat. No building
structures, fence structures, landscaping structures, private gardens or any other possible
obstruction can be built in and over said easements.

RESTRICTIONS

Be it also known that the undersigned do hereby covenant and agree for themselves and
their successors and assigns that each and all of the residential lots in said subdivision be and the
same are hereby made subject to the following restrictions upon their use and occupancy as fully
and effectively to all intents and purposes as if the same were contained and set forth in each
deed of conveyance or mortgage that the undersigned or their successors in interest may
hereinafter make for any of said lots and that such restrictions shall run with the land and with
each individual lot thereof for the length of time and in all particulars hereinafter stated, to-wit:

1. Any dwelling that shall be erected on any lot shall have a minimum setback from the
front, side, and rear of the lot lines as indicated on attached Final Plat. The minimum set back
from each side lot line is 10% of the lot width measured along the front of the lot or seven (7)
feet whichever is greater. All minimum setbacks will be required to meet or exceed R-1 Zoning.

29

Item 5.



2

2. No single family dwelling shall be constructed, permitted or occupied on any lot
herein having a square footage floor space, designed, intended, and constructed for living
quarters, which space shall not include cellars, attics, garages, breezeways, porches, stoops, and
other such non-living areas, of less than the following requirements:

A. 1,350 square feet for the main base of a single story, split-level or split-foyer houses.

B. 1,000 square feet on the first floor for story and one-half houses, or two story houses.
With a total for all floors not less than 1,650 square feet excluding the basement level.

3. Each single family residence shall have a minimum of a two stall attached garage with
a minimum of 525 square feet with a maximum of a three stall garage with a maximum of 1,600
square feet.

4. The owner(s) of each lot, vacant or improved, shall keep his/hers lot or lots free of
weeds and debris.

5. No obnoxious or offensive trade or activity shall be carried on upon any lot nor shall
anything be done thereon which may be or become an annoyance or nuisance to the
neighborhood.

6. All approaches and driveways in said subdivision shall be paved with concrete.

7. Owner of each lot shall comply with all requirements of the US Post Office for mail
receptacles. All mailboxes shall be clustered or grouped for the units as shown on the Plat, and
shall be placed between the curb line and the property line abutting the lots. The area around
said mailboxes shall be kept free and clear by the owner of the lots on which said mailboxes are
located.

8. No old or used buildings shall be moved upon any of the lots in said subdivision for
any purpose. Any auxiliary buildings or sheds must be built of the same or similar materials of
the residential structure on the lot and have the same roof pitch and design as said residential
structure.

9. No radio station or short-wave operators of any kind shall operate from any lot which
shall cause interference with audio or visual reception upon any other lot. No exterior radio
antenna shall be erected or maintained in or on the property. No satellite TV antenna or “Dish”
may be maintained, constructed or erected on any lot unless it is constructed in the rear yard and
at least twenty feet from any property line and is shielded from the public view by shrubbery and
landscaping. No dish larger than 24” will be allowed.

10. No dwelling on any lot of said subdivision shall be occupied until the exterior is
completed and finished and the interior substantially completed and finished.

11. No bus, semi-tractor, RV, fifth-wheel camper, trailer or truck of any kind except what
is commonly described as a “pick-up truck” shall be kept or parked on any lot or street in said
subdivision for a period not to exceed twenty-four hours, after which said vehicle can not return

30

Item 5.



3

to said subdivision for a period of five days, provided, however, that this prohibition shall not
apply to such vehicles driven in said subdivision in pursuit of and in conducting their usual
business.

12. All buildings erected on any lot in said subdivision shall be constructed in accordance
with the Building, Plumbing, and Electrical Codes of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

13. No animals, livestock, or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept on any lot,
except that two dogs or cats maximum, or other household pets are allowed and then only if they
are not kept, bred or maintained for any commercial purposes, such animals shall be kept under
control so as not to constitute a public nuisance and must be kept in compliance with applicable
zoning laws and regulations of the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Dog runs or
dog kennels of any kind are prohibited.

14. Any and all fencing constructed on said lots shall have a minimum set back of one
foot from any property line. Construction of any privacy fencing must have the support posts on
the interior side of the fencing.

15. A four foot wide P.C.C. sidewalk four inches thick will be installed by the owner of
said lot during or immediately after the construction of the residence on any particular lot, or
within five years after the date the plat is filed in the office of the recorder of Black Hawk
County, whichever is sooner and that the sidewalk be across the full width of the lot and on
corner lots also. In the event that the City is required to construct the sidewalk, a lien or liens
may only be imposed against the lot or lots which require city construction and no others in the
subdivision.

16. No building or structure shall be erected, placed or altered on any lot in this
subdivision until the building plans, and plot plan, showing all buildings, patios, and pools, and
showing the location thereof, and side yard distances, rear yard distances, front yard distances,
driveways, and walkways, and type of construction have been approved in writing as to
conformity and harmony of the external design and quality workmanship and materials with
existing structures in the subdivision by a representative of Panther Farms, LLC.

17. Factory-built housing or modular homes will not be allowed. Panelized homes may
be allowed, but must meet the requirements of Panther Farms, LLC, as stated in the previous
restriction.

18. The contractor or owner of any lot shall verify the depth of the sanitary sewer service
line serving said lot to insure minimum drainage will be met prior to any footing or foundation
work being completed. All sump pump lines must be buried and attached to the subdrain along
the back of the P.C.C. curbed street. No sump lines will be allowed to dump directly onto the
ground surface.

19. Each person or entity who is record owner of a fee or undivided fee interest in any
lot shall be a member of the Homeowners Association to be known as Prairie Winds
Homeowners Association. This shall not be construed to include persons or entities who hold an
interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation. There shall be one vote per lot

31

Item 5.



4

and each lot owner shall be a member of the Homeowners Association. Membership shall be
appurtenant to and may be not separated from ownership of any lot; ownership of such lot shall
be the sole qualification of membership.

The purpose of Prairie Winds Homeowners Association shall be to own and maintain the
common area and green spaces of the development, including but not limited to Tracts “A” &
“C” of Prairie Winds 1st Addition, the retention pond(s) and surrounding access (whether located
in said subdivision or serving said subdivision but located outside thereof) and such other
activities set forth in the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Association. Such
ownership and maintenance shall include, but not be limited to, common neighborhood

monument-type mailboxes, mowing, watering, including upkeep of any underground sprinkler
system, snow removal of common areas, maintenance of the retention pond(s) water
retention/detention area(s) including water quality issues set forth by the City of Cedar Falls in
the Maintenance and Repair Agreement for Prairie Winds 1st Addition. Initially, the Developer,
Panther Farms, LLC, shall perform the actual construction duties to establish the common area,
green spaces, entrance, pond and surrounding access area.

The annual dues for the Association shall initially be set at $____ per lot per year
beginning in ____________, 2019. The Developer, Panther Farms, LLC, shall be exempt from
any dues expense. The Association shall have the ability and authority to adjust annual dues as it
deems appropriate to carry out the maintenance duties as described above.

20. The Owner and/or occupant of each Lot shall jointly and severally be responsible to
keep in good order or to maintain the area between the curbline and the property line abutting
their property including keeping said area free of holes, pitfalls, stumps of trees, fences, brick,
stone, cement, stakes, posts or rods to which a metal, plastic or similar receptacle designed to
hold newspapers are affixed, private irrigation or sprinkler systems, retaining walls, landscaping
brick, block, stone, timber or other similar material, or any other similar obstructions.. Lots 12
and 13 shall be responsible for the maintenance of the slope and sidewalk sections along Hudson
Road and in between said lots. If said maintenance is not performed the City of Cedar Falls shall
have the right to perform such maintenance and assess the cost for the same to the owners of said
Lots.

21. Any and all drainage easements will be required to follow the “Stormwater
Management Plan” and no building structures, fence structures, landscaping structures, private
gardens or any other possible obstruction can be built in and over said drainage easements. All
lot owners and/or contractors working on said lots will be responsible to maintain said easements
to be free and clear of any physical obstruction(s) thus allowing the conveyance of overland
storm water runoff as intended per “Stormwater Management Plan” on record with the City of
Cedar Falls Engineer's Office.

22. Tract "A" to be deeded to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa for street purposes.

23. Lots 21 and 22 shall not have any access off Kara Drive.

32

Item 5.



5

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED IN PLAT

1. The Street(s) shown on the attached plat, will be brought to City grade and that the
street will be thirty-one (31) feet, back of curb to back of curb, with approved hard surface
pavement in accordance with the City of Cedar Falls, Standard Specifications unless otherwise
specified as per approved construction plans.

2. Sanitary sewer, together with the necessary manholes and sewer service lines to all
lots in the plat will be provided.

3. That underground utilities, as required by the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of
Cedar Falls, Iowa, shall be installed.

4. That city water will be provided to all lots as required by the Cedar Falls Municipal
utilities.

5. That municipal fire hydrant(s) will be provided as required by the Cedar Falls Public
Safety Department.

6. That Storm sewer will be provided as specified by the City Engineer.

7. That handicap ramps will be provided as required by law.

8. All buildings erected on any lot in said subdivision shall be constructed in accordance
with the building, plumbing and electrical codes of the City of Cedar Falls.

9. That the work improvements called herein shall be in accordance with the
specifications of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and performed under the supervision of the City
Engineer. In the event that the developer, Panther Farms, LLC, it grantees and assigns fail to
complete said work and improvements called for within one (1) year from the date of the
acceptance of said final plat by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, the City may then make
improvements and assess the costs of the same to the respective lots. The undersigned, for
themselves, their successors, grantees and assigns, waive all statutory requirements of notice of
time and place of hearing and agree that the City may install said improvements and assess the
total costs thereof against the respective lots.

10. That the City may perform said work, levy the cost thereof as assessments, and the
undersigned agree that said assessments so levied shall be a lien on the respective lots with the
same force and effect as though all legal provisions pertaining to the levy of such special
assessments have been observed, and further authorize the City Clerk to certify such assessments
to the County Auditor as assessments to be paid in installments as provided by law.

11. The Developer shall construct and install all required public improvements within the
subdivision plat, to conform with approved construction plans which meet the specifications of
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Such required public improvements shall meet the following
requirements:

A. Shall be constructed and installed in a good and workmanlike manner;

33

Item 5.



6

B. Shall be free of defects in workmanship or materials;

C. Shall be free of any conditions that could result in structural or other failure of
said improvements;

D. Shall be constructed and installed in accordance with the design standards and
technical standards established for such public improvements by the City and by
Cedar Falls Utilities;

E. Shall be constructed and installed in strict compliance with the minimum
acceptable specifications for the construction of public improvements set forth in the
Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, including without limitation, Chapter 24,
Subdivisions, and as such specifications shall be recommended for approval by the
City Engineer from time to time, and approved by the city council.

12. The Developer’s construction plans are now on file in the Office of the City
Engineer.

SIGNED and DATED this _______ day of _______________, 201__
Panther Farms, LLC

___________________________
Brent Dahlstrom, Manager

STATE OF IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY: ss

On this ____day of ______________, 201__, before me, the undersigned, a Notary
Public in and for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Brent Dahlstrom, Manager of Panther
Farms, LLC, to me known as the identical persons named in and who executed the foregoing
instrument and acknowledged that they executed the same as their voluntary act and deed on
behalf of Panther Farms, LLC.

______________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa

34

Item 5.



35

Item 5.



36

Item 5.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, ACIP, Planner II 

  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: August 8, 2019  

 SUBJECT: Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition Preliminary Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve the Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition Preliminary 
Subdivision Plat 

PETITIONER: White Coat Series II, LLC; Engineer: CGA, Inc. 
LOCATION: 

 
The 14-acre property is located west of Apollo Street and north of Pheasant 
Drive.  

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to subdivide a 14 acre parcel in the R-P, Planned Residence, zoning 
district with the intent to develop 18 new single-unit residential lots.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The 14 acres under consideration 
are part of the Pheasant Hollow 
Development and was rezoned from 
A-1 (Agricultural) and R-1 
(Residential) to R-P (Planned 
Residence District) on October 13, 
2003. The rezoning, as required by 
the R-P zoning district, included an 
R-P Site Plan and development 
agreement. These documents 
outlined how this area was to 
develop. An amendment to the 
original R-P Site Plan was approved 
by the City Council on July 21, 2014. 
The amended R-P Site Plan updated the proposed uses allowed in the area (i.e. single unit 
homes and a limited amount of condo units) and reconfigured the layout of the development. 
The proposed preliminary plat is the westernmost section of the plan, outlined in red in the 
image above.  
 
The Pheasant Hollow Development has been growing since 1990. Past approvals and 

Excerpt of the Amended 2014 R-P Site Plan 

37

Item 6.



development in this area include: Pheasant Hollow Addition (42 lots approved in 1990), 
Pheasant Hollow Second Addition (11 lots approved in 1999), Pheasant Hollow Third Addition 
(34 lots approved in 2005), Pheasant Hollow Fourth Minor Subdivision (1 lot in 2014), Pheasant 
Hollow Fifth Minor Subdivision (created several unbuildable parcels within Pheasant Hollow 
Third Addition that were sold to adjoining lot owners in 2015), and Pheasant Hollow Sixth 
Addition (4 lots and a 14-acre “Tract M” that was reserved for future development). The 
preliminary plat, Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition, under consideration proposes to replat 
Tract M of Pheasant Hollow Sixth Addition to create 18 new lots.  
 
Analysis 
The property under consideration is zoned R-P, Planned Residential District. R-P Districts are 
established with a comprehensive development plan. The R-P District site plan for this area was 
originally approved in 2003 and amended in 2014. The applicant is proposing to create 18 new 
single unit homes on 14 acres of land, for an overall density of 1.3 units per acre. The proposed 
preliminary plat is consistent with the approved 2014 R-P District Site Plan.   
 
The R-P District allows the 
establishment of a mixture of 
residential types as well as 
some commercial uses in 
order to create a more 
diverse neighborhood. To 
ensure that the proposed mix 
of uses are integrated 
together in a cohesive 
manner, a master plan is 
required at the time of 
rezoning. Development in this 
particular proposed 
preliminary plat is restricted 
to single unit homes; this is 
consistent with the approved 
2014 R-P District Site Plan. 
Minimum lot area standards 
and required setbacks in the 
R-P District are the same as 
found in the R-4, Residential District. The only difference is that the R-P District allows the 
flexibility for a “zero” side yard setback to meet the layout and building types proposed in the 
master plan. In this case, since only detached single-unit dwellings are proposed, the submitted 
preliminary plat follows all of the R-4 standards, including the side yard setback. The R-4 District 
requires that a single unit lot have a minimum square footage of 6,000 square feet and the 
following minimum setbacks: 20-foot front yard, 30-foot rear yard, and a side yard of 10% of the 
lot width. All 18 of the proposed buildable lots meet these standards. In this particular case, as 
the rear yard of all of the proposed lots are along the district boundary, the required 30 foot 
boundary setback of the R-P District is also met. The minimum required setbacks are shown on 
the plat and echoed in the Deed of Dedication. 
 
Tract A on the preliminary plat will be an extension of Apollo Street, which has an existing 60-
foot right-of-way. This extension will provide access to all 18 proposed lots. The placement of 
the proposed street is consistent with the approved 2014 R-P District Site Plan. 

Excerpt of the proposed Preliminary Plat 

38

Item 6.



 
Tract’s B and D on the preliminary plat are for detention basins. Stormwater easements are 
proposed throughout the preliminary plat to direct storm water runoff to the two detention basins. 
These basins are designed to ensure that the water runoff from the new development is properly 
managed. A culvert will be constructed under the proposed road to connect Tract B to the larger 
Tract D so to direct any overflow on the south side of the development. City engineering staff 
has reviewed and approved the Applicant’s stormwater report. After the preliminary plat is 
approved, but prior to construction of the infrastructure, the City’s engineering staff will review 
the stormwater calculations again to make sure everything is properly located, graded and 
sized.  
 
None of the area of the preliminary plat falls within the flood plain. However, it should be noted 
that when the land was originally surveyed in 2014 a small wetland was identified on the site.  
However, it was determined this June by the US Army Corps of Engineers that it is not a 
jurisdictional wetland, so mitigation will not be required and the wetland delineation is no longer 
required on the platting documents.  
 
Tract C on the preliminary plat is reserved for 
greenspace. Most of the existing grove of trees on this 
property will be maintained as the applicant sees the 
existing tree coverage as a valuable asset for the 
development. Only the striped areas on the plat, 
shown on the previous page, will need to be cleared 
for grading purposes. An aerial image of the site today 
is shown on the right. 
 
Approval of a preliminary plat would allow the 
developer to proceed with the construction and 
installation of all required public infrastructure such as 
streets, sewers, and other utilities. A final plat, which 
legally creates all the lots and any tracts, will follow. 
No lot sales or new home construction can begin until a final plat is approved by the City 
Council. A final plat cannot be processed through the Commission until infrastructure 
construction plans (streets, utilities, etc.) are approved by the City Engineering Division. 
 
Basic platting documents have been submitted including the Deed of Dedication, Auditor 
approval of the subdivision plat name, $300 platting fee, Certificate of Survey, environmental 
report/soil survey, and a drainage/grading plan. The attorney’s title opinion must be submitted 
for the final plat. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that water, gas, and 
communication services are available to the site. The developer will be responsible for 
extending the utility services to the proposed development. The easements identified on the plat 
satisfy CFU requirements. The placement of water hydrants will be reviewed when the 
construction plans are completed. All technical comments have been addressed. However one 
minor item remains: 

1. Details are needed on where the required cluster mailboxes will be placed. 
2. Based on a comment received from a neighboring property owner to the south (see 

attached correspondence), an additional drainage swale may be needed along the 
39

Item 6.



southern boundary of the plat to ensure that water from this development is directed to 
the stormwater detention basin in Tract D. The City’s engineering staff will review and 
advise the applicant accordingly. 

 
A courtesy notice to adjoining property owners for this Preliminary Plat was mailed on August 6, 
2019. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition Preliminary Plat is consistent with the zoning, 
the adopted R-P District Site Plan for this area, and meets the standards of the City’s 
subdivision code.  The Community Development Department recommends approval subject to 
the following stipulations: 
 

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2) Details are submitted on where the required cluster mailboxes will be placed. 
3) Topography and drainage pattern along the southern border of the plat will be 

reviewed and an additional drainage swale and associated drainage easement will be 
added to the plat, if necessary.  

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Preliminary 
Discussion 
8/8/2019 

 

 
Attachments:   
 Pheasant Hollow 7

th
 Addition Preliminary Plat 

 Deed of Dedication 
 Letter from Developer Explaining Request 

2014 R-P District Site Plan 
 Received citizen comments/questions/concerns 
 

  

 

40

Item 6.



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

74
8\

dw
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

\5
74

8 
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
.d

wg
 - 

Sh
ee

t 1
 o

f 3
 - 

 0
7-

26
-1

9 
- 2

:5
5p

m
 - 

KM
N3

52

CGA PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION
1 OF 3

5748

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA PRELIMINARY PLAT
MJS

SJC 6-03-2019

LEGEND

SIGN

X X X X

105

W (*) W

San(*) San

StS (*) StS

M

C C

G (*) G

OH E OH E

E (*) E

T(*) T

T T OWNERS OF RECORD
PHEASANT HOLLOW HOLDINGS INC
9055 BEAVER MEDAOWS LANE
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

SURVEY REQUESTED BY:

ZONING INFORMATION:
CURRENT: RP (RESIDENTIAL PLANNED)

WHITE COAT SERIES II, LLC
4426 WYNNEWOOD DRIVE
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  50613

SURVEYOR AND ENGINEER
TRAVIS R. STEWART, P.L.S.
ADAM DATERS, P.E.
CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES
P.O. BOX 754 - 16 E. MAIN STREET
MARSHALLTOWN, IOWA 50158
(641)752-6701

NOTE:
ALL BEARINGS ARE THE RESULT OF G.P.S. OBSERVATIONS
USING NAD83 IOWA STATE PLAN NORTH ZONE

CLOSURE:
- ALL SUBDIVISION BOUNDARIES ARE WITHIN THE 1:10,000 ERROR OF

CLOSURE REQUIREMENT
- ALL LOTS ARE WITHIN THE 1:5000 ERROR OF CLOSURE REQUIREMENT.

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

SURVEY LEGEND
GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

(  )     RECORDED AS

PARCEL OR LOT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT SET

ID CAP #17162
SET 1/2" x 30" REBAR w/ORANGE PLASTIC

1/2" x 30" REBAR w/ORANGE PLASTIC ID CAP #17162

AS NOTED ON PLAN

PROJECT
LOCATION

FLOOD ZONE
(ZONE X )
PANEL # 19013C0161F
EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 18, 2011

DATE PREPARED:JULY 26, 2019

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
TRACT "M" PHEASANT HOLLOW SIXTH ADDITION, CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FILE NO 2018-8122.

SETBACK DATA
FRONT YARD = 20 FT
REAR YARD =  30 FT
SIDE YARD* = 10% LOT WIDTH AT THE FRONT SETBACK LINE

*LOTS MAY BE SPLIT OR DIVIDED TO PROVIDE FOR MORE LOT
AREA BY BEING ADDED TO AN ADJOINING LOT.  SIDE YARD
SETBACKS SHALL BE BASED ON OWNERSHIP/PROPERTY LINES
RATHER THAN PLATTED LOT LINES.

PRELIMINARY PLAT
PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION

REPLAT OF TRACT "M", PHEASANT HOLLOW SIXTH ADDITION
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

MAILBOX NOTES:
1. CLUSTER MAILBOX UNITS SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL

USPS STANDARDS & SPECIFICATIONS.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM WITH USPS PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION

3. ALL CLUSTER MAILBOXES SHALL BE PLACED IN THE
R.O.W.

41

Item 6.



59.04'

LOT 1
LOT 3LOT 4LOT 5

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16
LOT 17

M

LOT 2

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11 LOT 12

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16
LOT 17 LOT 18

M

SDSDSDSDSDSD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

WWW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WWWWWW

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

San San

W

StS

StS

StS

M

M M

M

M

TV

M

M

P

M

TM

TV
TTVTVTVTVTT

TTTV

X

X

X

OH E OH E OH E OH E OH E OH E

X

X

X X X

StS(D) StS(D)

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

T T T T T T T T T T

San(D) San(D) San(D)

G(
D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D) G(D) G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)

G(D)

G(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(
D) E(
D) E(D)

E(D) E(D)

E(D) E(D)
E(D)

E(D
)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)
E(D)E(D)E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

TVTV

TV

TV

TV TV TV TV TV TV TV TV
FO FO FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO FO

FO

FO

FO

FO FO

FO

FO

NW CORNER
SE1/4 NW1/4
SECTION 27-89-14
SET 58" REBAR

687.39'
S89°57'10"E

76
.5

7'
S

6°
37

'2
1"

W

56
.7

5'
S3

7°
08

'56
"W

99.44'
S

2°43'15"E

100.11'
S31°07'37"E

119.59'
S

12°12'49"E

14
8.

97
'

S
8°

21
'1

5"
W

83.82'
S

4°15'30"E

117.61'
S89°44'46"E

60
.1

6'
S

0°
04

'0
0"

W

43.16'
S89°50'17"E

13
4.

92
'

S
0°

07
'3

9"
W

870.24'
N89°53'15"W

848.75'
N

0°03'14"W

FND 5/8"
IRON PIPE

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND CUT "X"
ON ROCK

FND 1/2"
REBAR

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND 1/2"
REBAR

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND 1/2"
REBAR

FND 1/2"
IRON PIPE

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ YELLOW CAP NO. 7811

FND 1/2"
IRON PIPE

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ ORANGE PLASTIC

CAP NO. 7811

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ ORANGE PLASTIC
CAP NO. 7811

APOLLO STREET

StS
StS

StS
StS

St
S

StSStS

StS

StS

St
S

StS

San
San

San
San

San

SanSanSanSanSan

TRACT "A"

TRACT "B"

TRACT "C"

TRACT "D"

E

E

E
E

E
E

E

E

E

E E E E

E
E

E

E

GGGGGG
G

G

G

G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G

20' STORM SEWER
AND UTILITY
EASEMENT

30
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 A
N

D
U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

20
' D

RAIN
AGE A

ND

UTILI
TY E

ASEMENT

20' STORM
SEWER

EASEMENT

20' STORM SEWER
AND DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

20
' A

C
C

E
S

S
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
(S

E
E

 N
O

TE
S

)

EX
. 6

0'
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y

SE
W

ER
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

10' ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

20' PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYPICAL)

PROPOSED 4'
WALK

59.77'

20
1.

84
'

221.51'

144.41'

61
.2

9'
90

.3
3'

60.85'

19
9.

70
'

85.86'

136.76'

13
5.

00
'

13
5.

00
'

13
5.

00
'

13
5.

00
'

16
3.

90
'

224.88'

194.39'

193.85'

193.77'

150.16'
30.46'

16
2.

09
'

30.55'

199.97'

199.99'

160.83'
42.91'

18
1.

15
'

19
9.

70
'

109.98'90.80'

85
.4

7'

11
.5

4'

0.82'

60
.0

0'
R

.O
.W

.

31.00'
B/B

144.92'
63

.8
5'

261.42'

215.45' 148.49' 100.00' 100.00' 136.75' 109.80'

14
7.

41
'

10
0.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

11
0.

50
'

18
9.

30
'

131.89'

72
.3

0'

110.00'

100.00'100.00'

10
0.

00
'

18
.1

4'

90
.3

3'
90

.3
3'

11
.4

1'

167.97' 166.18'

14.54'
85.31'

80.80'

86.07'

94.07'

9.21'

257.12'

93.42'

60.19'

99
.0

1'

CLEARING AND
GRUBBING AREAS FOR

GRADING (TYP.)

61.50'

40
.0

0'

EX. 20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

20' ACCESS
EASEMENT

(SEE NOTES)

R48.00'
R59.00'

5.84' 5.
97

'

TRACT "C"

STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT

RIPARIAN AREA TO
REMAIN UNDISTURBED
AS NEEDED FOR STORM
SEWER INSTALLATION

AND MAINTENANCE

RIPARIAN AREA TO REMAIN
UNDISTURBED AS NEEDED FOR
STORM SEWER INSTALLATION

AND MAINTENANCE

159.39'

12
2.

37
'

45
' S

TO
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

53
' S

TO
R

M
S

E
W

E
R

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

EX
. 4

0'
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y

SE
W

ER
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

30' DRAINAGE
AND UTILITY
EASEMENT

30'

30'

40' S
A

N
ITA

R
Y

S
E

W
E

R
 A

N
D

 U
TILITY

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

CLEARING AND
GRUBBING AREAS FOR
GRADING (TYP.)

CLEARING AND
GRUBBING AREAS FOR

GRADING (TYP.)

30
' R

E
A

R
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

30' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT SETBACK

30' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT SETBACK

30
' R

E
A

R
 S

E
TB

A
C

K
20

' F
R

O
N

T
S

E
TB

A
C

K
20

' F
R

O
N

T 
S

E
TB

A
C

K

MAILBOX CLUSTER

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

120'60' 180'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

74
8\

dw
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

\5
74

8 
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
.d

wg
 - 

Sh
ee

t 2
 o

f 3
 - 

 0
7-

26
-1

9 
- 2

:5
5p

m
 - 

KM
N3

52

CGA PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION
2 OF 3

5748

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA PRELIMINARY PLAT
MJS

SJC 06-03-2019

NOTES
THE EXTENT OF TOPOGRAPHIC CHANGES SHALL
CONSIST OF ROADWAY GRADING AND LOT GRADING.
· TRACT "A" IS PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY TO BE

DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS.
· TRACT "B" STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

EXCAVATION.
· TRACT "C" SHALL BE RESERVED FOR GREEN

SPACE (STORM SEWER GRADING WILL TAKE
PLACE WITHIN THIS TRACT).

· TRACT "D" STORM WATER MANAGEMENT
EXCAVATION.

· TRACT "E" IS FOR WETLAND MITIGATION.
· TRACTS "B", "C", "D", AND "E" SHALL ALL HAVE

BLANKET EASEMENTS TO ALLOW FOR ACCESS
AND MAINTENANCE.

· SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 4:1 IN ANY ACCESS
EASEMENT AREA

· LOT 11'S DRIVEWAY SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE
SOUTHERN SIDE DUE TO THE SANITARY MANHOLE
STRUCTURE

LOT FRONTAGE AT 30'  SETBACK

LOT NUMBER ACTUAL DISTANCE
OF SETBACK (FT.)

CHORD DISTANCE (FT.)
(STRAIGHT LINE)

1 109.86 109.86

TRACT "B" 136.76 136.76

2 100.00 100.00

3 100.00 100.00

4 105.40 104.68

5 99.07 98.48

6 95.57 95.03

7 94.15 93.63

8 100.00 100.00

9 100.00 100.00

10 133.78 123.15

11 84.14 81.04

12 80.35 77.65

13 135.53 122.81

14 90.33 90.33

15 90.33 90.33

16 222.24 199.98

17 100.00 100.00

18 110.00 110.00

TRACT "C" 83.58 83.58

40' x 61.5'
ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

EX. WALK

PRELIMINARY PLAT
PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION

REPLAT OF TRACT "M", PHEASANT HOLLOW SIXTH ADDITION
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

42

Item 6.



LOT 1
LOT 3LOT 4LOT 5

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16
LOT 17

M

LOT 2

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11 LOT 12

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16
LOT 17 LOT 18

M

SDSDSDSDSDSD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

WWW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WWWWWW

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

San San

W

StS

StS

StS

M

M M

M

M

TV

M

M

P

M

TM

TV
TTVTVTVTVTT

TTTV

X

X

X

OH E OH E OH E OH E OH E OH E

X

X

X X X

StS(D) StS(D)

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

T T T T T T T T T T

San(D) San(D) San(D)

G(
D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D) G(D) G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)

G(D)

G(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(
D) E(
D) E(D)

E(D) E(D)

E(D) E(D)
E(D)

E(D
)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)
E(D)E(D)E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

TVTV

TV

TV

TV TV TV TV TV TV TV TV
FO FO FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO FO

FO

FO

FO

FO FO

FO

FO

NW CORNER
SE1/4 NW1/4
SECTION 27-89-14
SET 58" REBAR

687.39'
S89°57'10"E

76
.5

7'
S

6°
37

'2
1"

W

56
.7

5'
S3

7°
08

'56
"W

99.44'
S

2°43'15"E

100.11'
S31°07'37"E

119.59'
S

12°12'49"E

14
8.

97
'

S
8°

21
'1

5"
W

83.82'
S

4°15'30"E

117.61'
S89°44'46"E

60
.1

6'
S

0°
04

'0
0"

W

43.16'
S89°50'17"E

13
4.

92
'

S
0°

07
'3

9"
W

870.24'
N89°53'15"W

848.75'
N

0°03'14"W

FND 5/8"
IRON PIPE

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND CUT "X"
ON ROCK

FND 1/2"
REBAR

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND 1/2"
REBAR

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND 1/2"
REBAR

FND 1/2"
IRON PIPE

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ YELLOW CAP NO. 7811

FND 1/2"
IRON PIPE

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ ORANGE PLASTIC

CAP NO. 7811

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ ORANGE PLASTIC
CAP NO. 7811

APOLLO STREET

StS
StS

StS
StS

St
S

StSStS

StS

StS

St
S

StS

San
San

San
San

San

SanSanSanSanSan

TRACT "A"

TRACT "B"

TRACT "C"

TR
A

C
T 

"D
"

PROPOSED 4'
WALK

215.45' 148.49' 100.00' 100.00' 136.75' 109.80'

20
1.

84
'

14
7.

41
'

10
0.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

11
0.

50
'

18
9.

30
'

221.51' 131.89'

144.41'

61
.2

9'
90

.3
3'

72
.3

0'

60.85' 110.00'

19
9.

70
'

85.86'

136.76'100.00'100.00'

13
5.

00
'

13
5.

00
'

13
5.

00
'

13
5.

00
'

16
3.

90
'

28
4.8

5'

224.88'

194.39'

193.85'

193.77'

150.16'

16
2.

09
'

199.97'

199.99'

160.83'

42.91'

18
1.

15
'

19
9.

70
'

109.98'90.80'

85
.4

7'
10

0.
00

'

11
.5

4'
90

.3
3'

90
.3

3'

0.82'

14.54'
85.31'

80.80'

86.07'

94.07'

9.21'

257.12'

60
.0

0'
R

.O
.W

.

31.00'
B/B

167.97' 166.18'

144.92'
63

.8
5'

261.42'

928
929

930

935

940
943

942

939
940

941

942

943

944

945

946

947

948

949

951

952

953

95
4

955

960

964

94
2

94
0

93
5

93
0

92
5 92

3

92
3

92
5 93

0
93

0
92

8

955

95
0

94
5

94
0

939

93
8

935 93
5

955

95
0

945

93
9

93
9

93
7

93
7

4.0:1

20' STORM SEWER AND
UTILITY EASEMENT

20
' D

RAIN
AGE A

ND

UTILI
TY E

ASEMENT

20' STORM
SEWER

EASEMENT

20' STORM SEWER
AND DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

20
' A

C
C

E
S

S
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
(S

E
E

 N
O

TE
S

)

EX
. 6

0'
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y

SE
W

ER
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

EX
. 4

0'
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y

SE
W

ER
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

10' ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

20' PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYPICAL)

20' ACCESS
EASEMENT

(SEE NOTES)

EX. 20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

59.04'

E

E

E
E

E
E

E

E

E

E E E E

E
E

E

E

GGGGGG
G

G

G

G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G

30.46'
30.55'

18
.1

4'

11
.4

1'

93.42'

60.19'

99
.0

1'

R48.00'R59.00'

31.86' 31
.7

5'

TRACT "C"

59.77'

30' DRAINAGE AND
UTILITY EASEMENT

30'

30'

40' S
A

N
ITA

R
Y

 S
E

W
E

R

A
N

D
 U

TILITY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

45
' S

TO
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

30
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 A
N

D
U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

54
' S

TO
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

159.39'

12
2.

37
'

LOT 1
LOT 3LOT 4LOT 5

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16
LOT 17

M

LOT 2

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11 LOT 12

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16
LOT 17 LOT 18

M

SDSDSDSDSDSD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

WWW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WWWWWW

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

San San

W

StS

StS

StS

30
' R

E
A

R
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

30' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT SETBACK

30' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT SETBACK

30
' R

E
A

R
 S

E
TB

A
C

K
20

' F
R

O
N

T
S

E
TB

A
C

K
20

' F
R

O
N

T 
S

E
TB

A
C

K

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

120'60' 180'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

74
8\

dw
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

\5
74

8 
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
 S

he
et

 3
 o

f 3
.d

wg
 - 

Sh
ee

t 3
 o

f 3
 - 

 0
7-

26
-1

9 
- 2

:5
5p

m
 - 

KM
N3

52

CGA PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION
3 OF 3

5748

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA PRELIMINARY PLAT
MJS

SJC 06-03-2019

EX. WALK

PRELIMINARY PLAT
PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION

REPLAT OF TRACT "M", PHEASANT HOLLOW SIXTH ADDITION
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

40' x 61.5'
ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

NOTES
THE EXTENT OF TOPOGRAPHIC CHANGES SHALL
CONSIST OF ROADWAY GRADING AND LOT GRADING.
· TRACT "A" IS PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY TO BE

DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS.
· TRACT "B" STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

EXCAVATION.
· TRACT "C" SHALL BE RESERVED FOR GREEN

SPACE (STORM SEWER GRADING WILL TAKE
PLACE WITHIN THIS TRACT).

· TRACT "D" STORM WATER MANAGEMENT
EXCAVATION.

· TRACT "E" IS FOR WETLAND MITIGATION.
· TRACTS "B", "C", "D", AND "E" SHALL ALL HAVE

BLANKET EASEMENTS TO ALLOW FOR ACCESS
AND MAINTENANCE.

· SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 4:1 IN ANY ACCESS
EASEMENT AREA

· LOT 11'S DRIVEWAY SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE
SOUTHERN SIDE DUE TO THE SANITARY MANHOLE
STRUCTURE

LOT FRONTAGE AT 30'  SETBACK

LOT NUMBER ACTUAL DISTANCE
OF SETBACK (FT.)

CHORD DISTANCE (FT.)
(STRAIGHT LINE)

1 109.86 109.86

TRACT "B" 136.76 136.76

2 100.00 100.00

3 100.00 100.00

4 105.40 104.68

5 99.07 98.48

6 95.57 95.03

7 94.15 93.63

8 100.00 100.00

9 100.00 100.00

10 133.78 123.15

11 84.14 81.04

12 80.35 77.65

13 135.53 122.81

14 90.33 90.33

15 90.33 90.33

16 222.24 199.98

17 100.00 100.00

18 110.00 110.00

TRACT "C" 83.58 83.58

43

Item 6.



Last updated 6-3-19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Michael R. Young, Esq., 3151 Brockway Road, PO Box 810, Waterloo, IA 50704 (319) 234-

4471 

 

OWNER’S STATEMENT AND DEDICATION 

OF 

PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION,  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 

KNOW ALL PARTIES BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 

 That White Coat LLC, Series II, an Iowa series limited liability company (the 

“Developer”), being desirous of dividing the real estate legally described as:  

TRACT M IN PHEASANT HOLLOW SIXTH ADDITION, CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

into lots and laying out thereon a new addition in the City of Cedar Falls (the “City”), Black 

Hawk County, Iowa, does by these presents, dedicate and set apart said real estate as further 

described in the accompanying plat (the “Plat”) showing location and numbers and letters of the 

lots, tracts, and the name and location of the street, all to be hereinafter known and called:  

 

PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION, CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA (the 

“Addition”);  

 

said dedication being with the free consent and in accordance with the desires of the Developer, 

and does further covenant and agree, for itself, its successors, and assigns, that the respective lots 

and tracts in said Plat shall be, and the same are hereby subject to the following restrictions and 

easements, as fully and effectively as if the same were contained and set forth in each deed, 

contract, or mortgage that the undersigned or its successors in interest may hereafter make, and 

that such restrictions and easements shall run with the land, and with the described lots, all as 

follows:   

 

I. RESTRICTIONS 

  

 1.1 Tract A is reserved for use as a public right-of-way street to be known as an 

extension of “Apollo Street.” 

44

Item 6.



Page 2 

 

 1.2 Tracts B, C, D, and E are reserved for various public uses as shown in the Plat, 

including, without limitation, stormwater management and green space.  

 

1.3 Lots 1 through 18 in the Addition (individually a “Lot” and collectively the 

“Lots”) shall be known, described and used solely as residential lots, and no structure shall be 

erected on any Lot other than a detached single-family dwelling, not to exceed two stories in 

height, and an accessory detached storage building as restricted in subparagraph 1.8 below. 

 

 1.4 Only one- and two-story residential dwellings may be constructed on the Lots.  

No single family one-story dwelling shall be constructed on a Lot with a fully-enclosed first 

floor area of less than 1,800 square feet, exclusive of car port, garage and open porches.  No 

single family two-story dwelling shall be constructed on a Lot with a fully-enclosed first floor 

area of less than 1,800 square feet and a total of 2,200 square feet in the dwelling, exclusive of 

car ports, garage and open porches. A “story” shall be required to have a floor level which is at 

least one foot above ground level at all points.  Any floor level which is less than one foot above 

ground level at all points shall be considered a basement level, and shall not be a “story.”   

 

1.5 All residential dwellings shall have customary siding and exterior surface 

coverings.  Vinyl and aluminum siding is restricted to the rear and side elevations and up to 50% 

of the front elevation of the residential dwelling (garage openings shall be excluded from this 

calculation). Materials that may be used in the front elevation of the residential dwelling in the 

portion of such elevation that is not vinyl or aluminum siding shall include, but not be limited to, 

the following: brick, stone, stucco, EFIS, glass, natural wood, wood siding, or any other 

materials that have the same effect or appearance. 

 

1.6 All residential dwellings shall have an attached private garage that is a minimum 

of two stalls and 500 square feet in area and a maximum of four stalls and 1,500 square feet in 

area.  

 

1.7 No building shall be erected on any Lot nearer than the building line shown on the 

Plat. There is hereby established a side yard setback of 10% of the width of the front setback line 

of each Lot. 

 

 1.8 No detached storage building shall be constructed or placed on any Lot containing 

more than 300 square feet and no more than 12 feet in height.  No trailer, garage, barn, or other 

outbuilding erected in the Addition shall at any time be used as a residence, temporarily or 

permanently, nor shall any residence of a temporary character be permitted on any Lot. 

 

 1.9 No dwelling on any Lot shall be occupied until the exterior is completed and 

finished and the interior substantially completed and finished and an occupancy permit issued by 

the City.  All construction and landscaping shall be completed within one year from the start of 

dwelling construction.   

 

1.10 All driveway approaches located on City right-of-way shall be constructed of 

concrete, and all driveways in the Addition shall be at least 10 feet in width, constructed of a 

45

Item 6.



Page 3 

permanent hard surface, such as concrete, brick, stone or other similar hard surface.  The 

driveway on Lot 11 shall be placed south of and away from the sanitary sewer manhole on said 

Lot.  

 

 1.11 All fencing must be professionally installed and be brick, natural or synthetic 

wood, or in keeping with the style of the dwelling on the Lot.  Coated chain-link fencing shall 

only be allowed in side yards beyond the front yard set-back, and in the rear yard of a Lot.  No 

uncoated chain-link, snow, or temporary fencing of any type or nature, or barbed wire or woven 

wire, shall be permitted at any time on any Lot.    

 

1.12 No satellite TV antenna or “dish” more than two feet in diameter may be 

maintained, constructed or erected on any Lot.   

 

 1.13 All outdoor swimming pools shall be constructed “in ground.”  All non-portable 

jacuzzis, hot tubs, whirlpool spas or other items of such nature shall be recessed or built-in with 

the heating and filtering equipment and elements completely enclosed from public view by 

appropriate material.  

 

 1.14 All buildings on any Lot shall be kept in a reasonable state of repair and upkeep.  

The owner of each Lot, vacant or improved, shall keep said Lot free of weeds and debris. 

 

 1.15 No obnoxious or offensive trade or activity shall be carried on upon any Lot nor 

shall anything be done thereon which may be or become an annoyance or nuisance to the 

Addition or its broader neighborhood. 

    

 1.16 With the exception of a maximum of two household pets, no animals, poultry, 

rabbits, or livestock of any kind shall be kept or raised on any Lot.   

 

 1.17 Unless kept entirely enclosed in a permanent garage, the storage or parking of 

trailers of any kind, whether camping, boat, house, utility, or otherwise, or any bus, semi-tractor, 

trailer, recreational vehicle, or truck of any kind, except what is commonly described as a 

“pickup truck” or “passenger van,” shall not be permitted on any Lot (including the driveway) or 

the street within the Addition.  “Storage” or “parking” for purposes of this restriction means that 

either the vehicle or trailer does not have a current license or that it is left open to view from 

adjacent properties for a length of time from which a reasonable person would infer that it is 

being stored or parked and not being left only for the short-term convenience of the owner.  

  

1.18 Each lot shall comply with all requirements of the U.S. Post Office for mail 

receptacles. All mailboxes in the Addition shall be clustered or grouped for the Lots, and shall 

not be placed between the curb line and the property line abutting the Lots.  

 

1.19 The undersigned and all persons and corporations hereafter acquiring any right, 

title, or interest in any of the Lots shall be taken and held to have agreed and covenanted with the 

owners of all other Lots and with the respective successors and assigns of all of the rest of such 

other Lots to conform to and observe all of the foregoing covenants, restrictions and stipulations 

as to the use and construction or building thereon, for a period of 21 years from the date of filing 

46

Item 6.



Page 4 

of the Plat and this Deed of Dedication for record.  Within the period of 21 years and in 

accordance with the Iowa Code §§614.24 and 614.25 (2019) or their successor provisions, these 

covenants, restrictions and stipulations may be extended for an additional period of 21 years 

upon compliance with §§614.24 and 614.25 (2019).  In the event an extension of the covenants, 

restrictions and stipulations is not filed within the period of 21 years or successive 21-year 

periods, then the covenants, restrictions and stipulations contained herein shall terminate at the 

end of the existing period of 21 years.   

 

 1.20 If the parties hereto or any of them or their heirs or assigns shall violate or attempt 

to violate any of the covenants or restrictions herein, it shall be lawful for any other person or 

persons owning property in the Addition to prosecute any proceedings at law or in equity against 

the person or persons violating or attempting to violate any such covenants or restrictions and for 

the purpose of preventing such acts or to recover damages for such violations, or both, and for 

costs and reasonable attorney fees as determined by the Court and not the statute. 

 

 1.21 Invalidation of any of these covenants by judgment, decree or court order, shall in 

no way affect any of the other provisions of this dedication and such other provisions shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

 

II. HOMEOWNER’S ASSOCIATION 

 

The Developer hereby dedicates and sets apart Tracts B, C, D, and E in the Addition for 

use as stormwater management and green space and natural areas, all as shown and laid out on 

the Plat and all subject to the restrictions and easements set forth herein, and does further declare 

as follows:   

 

2.1 An Iowa non-profit corporation known as the Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition 

Homeowners Association (the “Association”) is being created for the purpose of maintaining 

Tracts B, C, D, and E for the common benefit of the owners of all Lots.  Each Lot owner shall be 

a member of the Association and subject to its rules, requirements, and regulations. The 

Developer does now convey Tracts B, C, D, and E to the Association for use as a stormwater 

management and green space and natural areas, per City of Cedar Falls requirements.  The 

Association is charged with the duty to maintain and repair said stormwater management and 

green space and natural areas, per City of Cedar Falls requirements, for the benefit of all Lot 

owners.  The membership of the Association shall at all times remain vested in the owners of 

each and all Lots; a transfer of a Lot shall automatically require that the membership rights and 

obligations in the Association be transferred to the new owner, including any unpaid 

assessments.  The cost of the maintenance of Tracts B, C, D, and E shall be shared equally by 

each of the Lot Owners, in the manner and amount determined from time to time by the 

Association’s board of directors.  Any owner failing to pay an assessment adopted by the 

Association’s board of directors shall be subject to a civil action for collection instituted by the 

Association’s board of directors or a lien may be filed against the property of such owner and 

collected in the same manner as if it was a mechanic’s lien. 

 

47

Item 6.



Page 5 

 2.2 The Developer will cause to be constructed the stormwater management areas on 

the aforementioned tracts as shown and laid out on the Plat.  Thereafter, said stormwater 

management areas shall be maintained by the Association as described at paragraph 2.1 above. 

 

III. DEDICATION AND CONSTRUCTION OF STREETS, SEWERS AND UTILITIES 

 

  The Developer hereby dedicates and sets apart to the public and for the public’s use 

Tract A in the Addition for use as a public right-of-way street, as shown and laid out on the Plat 

and all subject to the easements set forth herein, and does further declare as follows:   

 

 3.1 That the street on Tract A will be brought to City grade standards and will be 

surfaced in accord with City specifications.  Street paving widths shall be as shown on the Plat.   

 

 3.2 That sanitary sewer service, together with all necessary manholes and sewer 

service lines to all Lots, will be provided.   

 

 3.3 That utilities, as required by the City’s Subdivision Ordinance, shall be installed.   

 

 3.4 That city water will be provided as required by the Municipal Water Utility of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (Cedar Falls Utilities). 

 

 3.5 That municipal fire hydrants will be provided as required by the Cedar Falls 

Public Safety Department. 

 

 3.6 That storm sewer service will be provided as specified by the City Engineer. 

 

 3.7 That accessibility ramps will be provided as required by law. 

 

 3.8 That a four-foot wide concrete sidewalk four inches thick and a concrete surface 

or hard surface entrance will be installed during or immediately after the construction of the 

residence on any Lot, or within five years after the date the Plat is filed in the Black Hawk 

County Recorder’s Office, whichever is sooner, and that the sidewalk be across the full width of 

the Lot.  

 

 3.9 That the work and improvements called for herein shall be in accordance with 

City specifications, and performed under the supervision of the City Engineer.  In the event the 

undersigned, its grantees and/or assigns, fails to complete said work and improvements called for 

in the initial phase herein within one year (except for subparagraph 3.8 above) from the date of 

the acceptance of said final plat by the City, the City may then make the improvements and 

assess the costs of same to the respective Lots.  The owners, for themselves, their successors, 

grantees and assigns, waive all statutory requirements of notice of time and place of hearing and 

waive statutory protections and limitations as to cost and assessments and agree that the City 

may perform said work, levy the cost thereof as assessments, and the undersigned agree that said 

assessments so levied shall be a lien on the respective Lots with the same force and effect as 

though all legal provisions pertaining to the levy of such special assessments have been 

48

Item 6.



Page 6 

observed, and further authorizes the City’s Clerk to certify such assessments to the Black Hawk 

County Auditor as assessments to be paid in installments as provided by law.  

  

IV. EASEMENTS 

 

 The Developer does hereby grant and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its 

successors and assigns, and to any private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the 

transmission and/or distribution of water, sanitary sewer, gas, electricity, communication service, 

or other data means, perpetual easements for the erection, laying, building and maintenance of 

said services across, on and/or under the property as shown on the attached Plat.  All such 

utilities shall be installed underground.    

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been signed at Cedar Falls, Iowa this 

________ day of ________________, 2019. 

 

WHITE COAT LLC, SERIES II                      

 

 

By: ________________________________         

       Ryan N. Borgwardt, Company Member 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     )ss 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on __________________, 2019, by Ryan 

N. Borgwardt, as Company Member of White Coat LLC, Series II. 

 

 

 

      ___________________________________ 

       Notary Public - State of Iowa 

 

 

 

 

 

 

49

Item 6.



 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. 

16 East Main Street ● Marshalltown, Iowa  50158 ● Telephone 641-752-6701 ● Fax 641-752-2849 
Toll Free 800-542-7981 ● www.cgaconsultants.com 

 

April 8, 2019 
 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay St 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
 
 

RE: Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition Preliminary Plat 

 
 
To Whom it May Concern: 
 
On behalf of White Coat Series II, LLC, we would like to submit the Preliminary Plat of Pheasant 
Hollow Seventh Addition for your consideration. 
 
The Preliminary Plat consists of 18 lots, storm water tracts, and public road extension. This 
addition will complete the Pheasant Hollow development. 
 
An environmental report, storm water management plan, and soils analysis have been 
submitted with this cover letter. 
 
Please contact me at 641-752-6701, or stroskey@cgaconsultants.com if you have any 
questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 

 
Steve Troskey       
Project Manager 

50

Item 6.



51

Item 6.



From:                              Karen Howard
Sent:                               Thursday, August 08, 2019 11:50 AM
To:                                   Iris Lehmann
Subject:                          FW: Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition preliminary plot
 
Follow Up Flag:              Follow up
Flag Status:                     Flagged
 
Iris,
 
Please include this in the P&Z submittal and also forward to the developer to allow them to prepare for a
response to these concerns. Please also touch base with Matt to see if there is anything we should be looking at
to help answer these concerns next week at the meeting.
 
Thanks,
Karen
 
From: Tim Horrigan [mailto:tchorriganmd@gmail.com] 
Sent: Thursday, August 8, 2019 11:45 AM
To: iris.lehman@cedarfalls.com; Karen Howard
Subject: Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition preliminary plot
 

CAUTION: This email originated outside the City of Cedar Falls email system.
Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 

Thank you for the notice about the upcoming Planning and Zoning Commission meeting scheduled for
August 14. I cannot attend that day, but would like the commission to take into account a few questions:

My current property at 3527 Pheasant Drive has surface water drainage both from the west and the
north making my backyard continuously wet. We just this month completed some excavating and
planting which should help, so I am concerned about the new project. The north side of Pheasant
Drive should have originally been fairly aggressively tiled to drain the hill toward the east to the
creek. I see that Tract C and D are planned for water abatement.. Tract B appears to be staged for
storm sewer maintenance.  I would like the commission to address if lots 26 will have adequate
water drainage toward the east, and certainly not toward the south, toward the homes on Pheasant
Drive.
Power lines are overhead on the north side of Pheasant Drive (and the south side of the new
addition). It would seem reasonable to expect those to be replaced underground during this
development. I would like the commission to address this option with the developer and Cedar
Falls Utilities. 
We have a fence line on the north side of the property. (As does our neighbor to the east.). I do
hope to maintain the fence. Currently those fence lines are rather overgrown. I have no problem
doing some of that clean up work myself, but would want to coordinate that with the utilities, as
above, and/or the developer. 

Thank you 
 
Tim Horrigan 
3527 Pheasant Drive 52

Item 6.



Cedar Falls, IA 50613
tchorriganmd@gmail.com
 
Phone (319) 2696609

53

Item 6.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: August 7, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Land Use Map Amendment 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Land Use Map Amendment from Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed and 
Greenways and Floodplain to Low Density Residential (Case #LU19-002) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

West Fork Crossing, ISG Engineering 

LOCATION: 
 

1700-2000 Block of Union Road 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
Land use map amendment from Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed use and Greenways and 
Floodplain to Low Density Residential for the West Fork Crossing development on portions of 
119 acres of land along Union Road. The land use map amendment and rezoning will allow the 
development of a new residential subdivision. Zoning considerations normally involve evaluation 
of three main criteria: 
 

1. Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 

2. Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer service?  
3. Does the property have adequate roadway access? 

 
This staff report will focus on the first criteria, an amendment to the Future Land Use Map and 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND 
This property has been zoned as agricultural since adoption of the Zoning Ordinance in 1970.  
The Future Land Use Map was adopted in the spring of 2012 as a part of the Cedar Falls 
Comprehensive Plan. The current land use is greenways/floodplain, neighborhood 
commercial/mixed use and low density residential. Prior to the adoption of the Comprehensive 
Plan in 2012, the majority of the property was designated as low density residential. 
 

54

Item 7.



The University Branch of Dry Run Creek runs along the north edge of the property which 
encompasses the special flood hazard area (SFHA) or general floodplain. The greenway 
designation shown on the future land use map was intended to reflect the extent of the flood 
hazard area including a green buffer. This buffer serves an important function for natural 
stormwater drainage and mitigates flood risk. As part of the platting process, storm water 
detention will be collected throughout the subdivision and released into Dry Run Creek. The 
adjoining development to the northwest (New Aldaya site for The Terraces) created a storm 
water detention plan that utilizes Dry Run Creek to channel the detained stormwater down the 
creek and eventually into the area wide detention basin located north of the UNI Dome. As this 
section of property develops, a continued storm water management plan will be formalized to 
further control the stormwater in this area of the city. 
 
ANALYSIS 
As stated in the Comprehensive Plan, land use is the central element of the Plan because it 
establishes the overall physical configuration of the city, including the mix and location of uses 
and community systems (utilities).  
 
This 119-acre property is surrounded by residential development on the northeast with large lot 
acreages on the west. A manufactured home neighborhood is located southwest of the site and 
the future Cedar Falls High School is to the southeast. The University of Northern Iowa owns the 
property to the east.  

 
Generally speaking, the future land use for this area is low density residential. However, there is 
a section of land along the east side of Union Road that shows a neighborhood 
commercial/mixed use designation and a strip of greenways/floodplain along the University 
Branch of Dry Run Creek. Therefore, the land use analysis is the first step in the rezoning and 
development process. 
 
 

 
 

Existing Future Land Use 

55

Item 7.



The neighborhood commercial/mixed use category is identified in the Comprehensive Plan for 
low impact commercial with residential in the upper floors located on major streets, or in this 
case, Union Road. There are other neighborhood commercial land use areas at major 
intersections to the north and south of this site. Staff feels that maintaining this commercial land 
use at major intersections is more appropriate, since zoning too much land for commercial 
development, particularly in areas on the edge of the community in lower density areas, dilutes 
the market and reduces the viability of all of the nearby commercial areas as they compete 
against one another for market share. Therefore, staff recommends changing this commercial 
designation to low density residential.  
 
The greenways/floodplain category is reserved for passive open spaces and environmentally 
sensitive areas for floodplain and stormwater management. A drainageway flows through the 
north side of the site in a northwesterly to southeasterly direction. The floodplain boundary 
buffers this drainageway but only encompasses a portion of the area depicted on the future land 
use map and amending the greenways/floodplain land use to low density residential reflects a 
more accurate depiction of the future growth in this area. 

 
The land use amendment corresponds to the proposed rezoning from A-1, agriculture to R-1, 
residence district. The intent is to develop the 119 acres into single family residential lots with 
stormwater detention basins and floodplain buffers. One important feature of the stormwater 
management plan is to account for the additional stormwater that is received into this site from 
surrounding developments to the west and north. That stormwater, coupled with the stormwater 
generated on the site will be confined into detention basins and new storm sewers and released 
at a controlled rate into the existing drainageway. The proposed map above reflects the location 
of the greenways/floodplain. These areas provide a good opportunity to place the detention 
basins along the University Branch of Dry Run Creek to the north and within the drainage way 
near the southwest corner of the site. This particular drainage way represents the flow from the 
southwest corner of the site easterly to W. 27th Street. The Comprehensive Plan states as an 
essential component to the quality of life in Cedar Falls, park services should be offered within a 

  
Proposed Future Land Use 

56

Item 7.



comfortable walking distance (typically ¼ to ½ mile) from homes in the neighborhood. The 
design of this southern basin should consider elements like open space, natural areas and 
greenbelts that create a “parklike” setting for the residents of the neighborhood.    
 
Additional elements to this development include trails and sidewalks within and adjacent to the 
development. The Comprehensive Plan shows east/west and north/south trails near the 
University Branch of Dry Run Creek corridor. This corridor is part of the floodplain district and 
portions of this area have been developed with detention basins and buffers through the existing 
and planned subdivisions. Future trail locations are important in this development in order to 
provide the connections from the planned Union Road trail to the west, the W. 12th Street trail 
and Robinson-Dresser Sports Complex to the north and the W. 27th Street trail to the south as 
well as connections to the east into the proposed high school site on W. 27th Street.    
 
The Comprehensive Plan provides a summary of the Western Growth Area of Cedar Falls. This 
portion of the city extends westerly from Hudson Road to the city limits and from W. 1st Street to 
Viking Road. The section of land between W. 12th and W. 27th Street near the Union Road 
corridor shows this concept described below with staff comments in underlined, red text: 
 

 A system of greenways following the Dry Run Creek corridor, which in this case is the 
University Branch of Dry Run Creek. This corridor shall be preserved as open space, 
floodplain, storm water drainage, wildlife habitats and natural amenity for the nearby 
residents. This section of the University Branch of Dry Run Creek shall be maintained as 
described. 

 Street connections that provide connections throughout residential neighborhoods and 
adjoining street arterials (W. 12th and Union) and collectors (W. 27th) and move traffic 
more efficiently. As this project runs through the development process, the preliminary 
plat should provide a well-connected street pattern within the new neighborhood and to 
the existing neighborhoods and the surrounding streets and future important destinations, 
such as the new high school.  

 Extending Greenhill Road to the northwest, intersecting with University Avenue, W. 27th 
Street and Union Road. Greenhill Road terminates at W. 27th Street east of this property. 
Therefore, Greenhill Road will not extend through this site. 

 Extending Erik Road with a westerly extension and turning north to eventually connect 
into W. 12th Street and Birdsall Park. The extension of Erik Road or other similarly 
situated street is a long term concept that may eventually extend to the north and into this 
site. A north/south connection is planned with the future development of this site that will 
provide a future connection into the recently approved New Aldaya site through The 
Terraces at West Glen. 

 A system of modified cul-de-sac or looping streets to maintain connectivity while 
providing a low-traffic street for the residents. This street layout includes pedestrian/bike 
connections through a greenway system with multiple street entrances to each 
neighborhood to serve the “local” traffic and minimize the “cut-through” traffic. The 
concept of modified cul-de-sac and looping streets illustrated in the plan is an unusual 
concept that may not be realistic, but the principal of creating a pattern of well-connected 
streets is a well-documented best practice. When the preliminary plat is presented to staff 
and the Planning and Zoning Commission, a street network of modest size blocks and a 
well-connected pattern that will help to distribute the traffic and not overburden any one 
street should be carefully considered throughout the site and adjoining neighborhoods. 
This will provide an opportunity to create pedestrian/bike connections off the planned 

57

Item 7.



Union Road Trail to the existing W. 27th Street bike lanes and future extensions to the 
east into the proposed school site and the UNI campus. 

 
Based on the factors stated in this report, staff finds that it is appropriate to amend the future 
land use map to allow reasonable development of the property while still preserving and 
protecting the floodplain. The proposed amendment would maintain the location of the current 
greenway/floodplain and add the designation of “Low Density Residential to the rest of the 
property. The other details noted in the Plan regarding good neighborhood design, such as 
adequate parks and open space and a well-connected street pattern should be incorporated into 
future subdivision plats.   
 
A notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on August 8, 2019 regarding this request.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Gather any comments from the Planning and Zoning Commission and public then continue the 
discussion on this land use map amendment and set the date for public hearing for the next 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on August 28, 2019. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
8/14/19 

 

 

58

Item 7.



University of
Northern Iowa

University of
Northern Iowa

Robinson-Dresser
Sports

Complex

Pheasant Ridge
Golf Course

Walters
Ridge

Golf Course

Roger Birdsall
Memorial Park

Concord Cir

Quail Hollow Ln

W Sunshine Ln

Beaver Rd

Q

uail Ridge
R
d

S
k
y
lin

e
 D

r

P
o

s
s
u
m

 R
d

Wild Horse Dr

C
o

lu
m

b
in

e
 D

r

High St

C
h

e
rr

y
w

o
o

d
D

r

Sonoma Dr

Cobblestone Ct

Waterbury Dr

Stratford Ct

Q
u
a

i l Run Ln

R

ocky Rid
g

e
R

d
L
e

x
in

g
to

n
 D

r

Covey Ct

Blair R

id
ge

R
d

Jakob Cir

AlexisBlvd

Wellington Dr

Granite Ridge Rd

Frontier Rd

Pendleton Dr

Normandy Dr

W 12th St

Newland Dr B
ird

sa
ll
Par

k

D
r

Prairie Rd

W 12th St

U
n
io

n
 R

d

W 27th St

R-1

R-1

C-2

R-4

RP

P

R-2

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
August 14, 2019

Future Land Use Map Amendment

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

H
u

d
s
o

n
R

d

WRidg

eway Ave

University Ave

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

C

ente
r

S
t

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

M
a

in
 S

t

W 1st St

W 12th St

E Viking R
d

W Viking Rd

W
aterloo

R
d

U
n

io
n
 R

d

E 1st St

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

N

U
nion

R
d

E Lone Tree Rd

L
e

v
e

rs
e

e
R

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

59

Item 7.



Change from Neighborhood
Commercial to Low Density

Change from Greenways/Floodplan
and Low/Medium Density

Change from Greenways
Floodplan to Low Density

Proposed Land Use

Existing Land Use

Rezone from
A-1 to

R-1

60

Item 7.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: August 6, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone property from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Residential District (Case 
#RZ19-002) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

West Fork Crossing, ISG Engineering 

LOCATION: 
 

119 acre parcel between Union Road and Waterbury Drive 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The petitioner has submitted a request to 
rezone 119 acres of land between Union 
Road and Waterbury Drive from A-1, 
Agricultural to R-1, Residential District. The 
rezoning will allow the development of a 
neighborhood of primarily single-unit homes. 
 
BACKGROUND 
This property has been zoned as agricultural 
since adoption of the Zoning Ordinance in 
1970. The land is surrounded by an R-1 
residential district and a P, public district on 
the east; an R-4, residential district to the 
southwest; and an R-P, planned residence 
district to the west and north. The current 
owner recently purchased this property with 
the intent of developing single family 
dwellings. The rezoning of this property must 
be carefully considered by evaluating the characteristics of the land and surrounding properties. 
This staff report will outline a number of these elements in order to have a firm understanding of 
the future use of this property. 

 

61

Item 8.



ANALYSIS 
The purpose of the A-1, agricultural zoning district is to act as a “holding zone” for future 
development until municipal services (sanitary sewer, water, roads) are accessible to the site.  
When these services are available, the development of the land is threefold, beginning with the 
rezoning of the land, platting and construction. 
 
This 119-acre property is surrounded by residential development on the west, southwest and 
northeast. The University of Northern Iowa owns property to the east along with the potential 
high school site to the southeast. The northern edge of the property is bounded by the western 
reach of the University branch of Dry Run Creek. This portion of the property is located in the 
100-year floodplain that runs along Dry Run Creek to the northeast corner of the site. With the 
exception of the floodplain, there are no other sensitive areas within this rezoning plat. 
 
Zoning considerations normally involve evaluation of three main criteria: 
 

1) Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 
The current land use map is designated as low density residential, commercial/mixed use 
and greenways/floodplain. A proposed amendment outlined in a separate staff report, if 
approved, would remove the commercial/mixed use designation and reduce the 
greenways/floodplain area to align more closely with the current floodplain and drainage 
pattern. These areas would be designated on the future land use map as low density 
residential. The greenways/floodplain will serve as buffers for storm water management 
and detention. These areas also provide an opportunity, through thoughtful subdivision 
design, to create open spaces, natural areas, and neighborhood park space to serve the 
residents of this and surrounding developments. The Comprehensive Plan includes an 
analysis regarding the community needs for park land including geographic distribution. 
Since this will be a new area for residential growth, there will be a need for neighborhood 
park space. In other words, the upzoning of the land from agriculture to residential zoning 
causes a need for neighborhood infrastructure that ensures the health and welfare of future 
residents, which includes parks and trails, as well as streets, stormwater management 
facilities, sewer and water lines. All of these elements should be considered when this land 
is proposed for subdivision.  
 
As part of the platting process, a stormwater management system will be designed to 
accept the stormwater runoff from the west and north. The stormwater will be directed 
toward multiple detention basins on the site and released at a controlled rate into the 
floodplain. The stormwater management system must be designed so that it will not 
adversely affect the current and future residents surrounding and within this development. 
Details of the stormwater management plan will be reviewed during the platting process to 
ensure that it meets all Code requirements. 
 
If the Planning and Zoning Commission agrees to the land use map amendment, as 
described in a separate staff report under Case #LU19-002, the proposed rezoning of this 
property can continue. 

 
2) Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer service?  

Yes, sanitary sewer is readily available to the site. This sewer is located through the 
northern boundary of the property within the aforementioned floodplain and drainage way 
of Dry Run Creek. This sanitary sewer is located in the Cherrywood Interceptor Sewer 

62

Item 8.



District which includes a sewer tapping fee as part of the development. The sewer tapping 
fee is $294.63 per acre of development. This fee is paid by the developer at the time of 
final platting. This sewer will accommodate the proposed 119 acre development. 
 

3) Does the property have adequate roadway access?  
The property currently has access from Union Road and Waterbury Drive. Future 
connections to the north through the NewAldaya development, to the east and to the south 
onto W. 27th Street will accommodate the movement of traffic into and out of this site. A 
well-connected network of local streets within any future subdivision will be essential to 
help distribute traffic and create efficient routes for neighborhood residents. These street 
connections will be important for general traffic circulation and connections between 
neighborhoods and future neighborhoods. For example, while there may be no 
development planned for the property to the east of this site, at some point in the future 
there may be reasons to provide a connection to PE Center Drive. Similarly, several 
connections to the property to the south will provide access to W. 27th Street as this area 
develops over time. 
 
The annual average daily traffic for Union Road is approximately 3,000 vehicles per day. 
Depending on the circumstances and corridor constraints, a rural two-lane roadway could 
handle capacities up to 1,700 vehicles per hour during peak times. The rezoning of this 
property will allow the development of single family dwellings within 119 acres. More than 
likely, the development will be in phases starting off of Union Road and moving in an 
easterly direction. The proposed development will generate traffic when the lots are sold 
and construction with single family dwellings. At the onset of development, this traffic will 
utilize the internal roads and access Union Road. As development continues easterly, 
connections will be made with the existing subdivisions to provide alternative routes for the 
residents in the area. As developments more forward, City staff will continue to monitor 
traffic volumes along Union Road and when warranted, make improvements to Union Road 
as necessary. 
   

As part of the technical review of this proposal, Cedar Falls Utilities personnel, have no 
concerns with the proposed rezoning request. Water, electric, gas, and communication utilities 
are all available to this site from Union Road and Cross Creek Drive in the Lexington Heights 
subdivision. There is a water connection fee for this property based on the street lineal footage 
of Union Road. This connection fee is part of the cost of the original water main installations on 
Union Road. The sewer service serving this area is subject to the Cherrywood Interceptor 
Sewer District tapping fee of $294.63 per acre which was established by the City Council 
several years ago. All utility services will be extended into this property as part of the platting 
process. 
 
A notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on August 8, 2019 regarding this request.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Gather any comments from the Planning and Zoning Commission and public then continue the 
discussion on this land use map amendment and set the date for public hearing for the next 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on August 28, 2019. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
8/14/19 

 

63

Item 8.



 

64

Item 8.



Robinson-Dresser
Sports

Complex

Pheasant Ridge
Golf Course

Walters Ridge
Golf Course

Concord Cir

W Sunshine Ln

Beaver Rd

S
k
y
lin

e
 D

r

P
o
s
s
u
m

 R
d

Wild Horse Dr

Sonoma Dr

Cobblestone Ct

Waterbury Dr

Stratford Ct

R

ocky Rid
g

e
R

d

L
e

x
in

g
to

n
 D

r

Blair R

id
ge

R
d

Jakob Cir

Q
u

a
il

R
id

g
e

R
d

AlexisBlvd

Wellington Dr

Granite Ridge Rd

Frontier Rd

Pendleton Dr

Newland Dr

Prairie Rd

W 12th St W 12th St

U
n
io

n
 R

d

W 27th St

R-1

R-1

C-2

R-4

RP

P

R-2

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
August 14, 2019

Rezoning Request, A-1, Agriculture to
R-1, Residential

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

H
u

d
s
o

n
R

d

WRidg

eway Ave

University Ave

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

C

ente
r

S
t

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

M
a

in
 S

t

W 1st St

W 12th St

E Viking R
d

W Viking Rd

W
aterloo

R
d

U
n

io
n
 R

d

E 1st St

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

N

U
nion

R
d

E Lone Tree Rd

L
e

v
e

rs
e

e
R

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

65

Item 8.



“C-2”

“R-2”“R-2”“R-2”

“P”

66

Item 8.


	Top
	1. July 24 P&Z minutes
	07-24-2019 P and Z Minutes.final

	2. 311 Main Street – Pump Haus
	3. College Hill Site Plan Review - 1809 College Street
	1. Tiny house staff report
	2. cover letter
	3. updated site plan 7-25-19
	4. 1809 College Sheet A1 07.20.19 (2)

	4. Downtown Facade Review - CBD store
	1.P&amp;Z Staff report-Your CBD Store

	5. Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Plat
	0. PZ Staff report FP for Prairie Winds 4th addition
	1. 5491 Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Plat Sheet 1- 7-9-19
	2. 5491 Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Plat Sheet 2 - 7-9-19
	3. 5491 Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Plat Sheet 3 - 7-9-19
	4. Deed of Dedication
	5. Prairie Winds Preliminary Plat
	6. Prairie Winds Phasing Plat 11x17 12-2-14

	6. Pheasant Hollow 7th Addition Preliminary Plat
	1_P&amp;Z staff report for Pheasant Hollow
	2. UPDATED Preliminary Plat 7-26-19
	3. Deed of Dedication 6-3-19
	4. Cover Letter
	5. Updated PH MP amendment
	6. 8-8-19 email from neighbot

	7. Land Use Map Amendment - West Fork Crossing
	1 PZ staff Report on west fork land use amendment 8-5-19.k
	ZoningLocationMap
	Land Use Map Amendment

	8. Rezoning Request A-1 to R-1 - West Fork Crossing
	1 PZ staff Report on west fork rezoning 8-7-19.k
	2 ZoningLocationMap
	3 West Fork Rezoning Plat with districts

	Bottom

